




























In 1919 a location for a remote receiving and control station was chosen at 
Wailupe, Oahu, about seven miles east of Honolulu, close to the Marconi station at 
Koko Head. Harold B. Phelps, LT USN RET, was stationed at Wailupe f rom 1919 until 
1922. His story of the establishment of the Wailupe station was published in the 
Naval Communication Station, Honolulu, "Trade Winds" issue of 25 June 1970. A portion 
of that story is quoted: 

11When we entered World War I, the Navy simply moved a recruiting crew to the 
commercial stationa am signed up the entire crew in various ratings in the Naval 
Reserve, put uniforms on them, and continued to ut�tze their communication skills 
umer Navy supezvision. 

The temporary station at Wailupe was probably built arouni the first part of 
1919 and NFM moved there to allow the Kahuku and Kok4o Head stations to be remodeled. 
Almost the entire crew of operators at Koko Head was sent to Wailupe as USNR, supplemented 
by such regular Navy radiomen available. In those days not too many Navy operators had 
experience in handling commercial traff ic. 

The Navy IUrchased a piece of land at Wailupe for the temporary station am it 
was very temporar,y as plans were in the making for a permanent station at Wailupe. 
There were three booths, more like chicken coops, scattered on the beach. Each booth. 
of crude construction, bad room for two circuits. The roofs leaked and some of the 
operators had to sit under an umbrella sUBpended from the ceiling to keep water off the 
equipment. Or we would search around the yard for a scrap of tarpaper or some boards 
to lead the water Ci>f£ the operating position. There were no signals piped in. Receiving 
antennas were strung between trees am poles. All contrcl wires were very haywire, no 
soldered connections and very few even taped, which brought on intermi ttent wire trouble, 
rain or shine. 

There was an old house on the lam. It was one big room, no doors, windows or 
screenso This housed the office, file rooms, ship to shore circuit am the landwire 
to the Honolulu city office (HU) and tbe office in Pearl Harbor (PH). An,yone working 
in this house after dusk had to p.tt rubber bands around the bottom of their trousers 
and hav e  several sticks of mosquito punk under their chair to be able to stay there. 
I.£ they forgot to bring their punk or couldn't find someone else's cache they would stuff 
an old rag in a can and light it off. Anything was better than those mosquitoes. 

We stood a three section watch, seven days a w .. !k, no rotation of watches, no days 
o.f'f. Straight 8 on and 16 off, and that's the way it was at the start of NlM at Wailupe 
as a Government and commercial traffic station. 

When I went there in August of 1919, NFM had schedules with NFL (San Diego), NPU 
· (Tutuila, Samoa), NFN (Guam) , am NPO ( Cavi. te) • There was no direct daylight communi­
cation with NPO or JJC (Japan}. NPO broadcast to NFM at midnight. NPU broadcast to 
N!M at 2 a.m. and NFM broadcast to NPU at 9 a.m. None of those circuits were reliable 
at all times due to static am .fading periods. We just kept the traffic moving as best 
we could, all by hand, on low frequencies. Practically all traffic for Cavite and the 
Asiatic Fleet was relayed through NPN. 

The Navy had been searching around for a piece of land for the permanent station 
and finally had found some school land that was suitable, for which they traded t he  
temporary site, and s tarted constru.ction of the permaneut. buildi.D&•• The new site also 
gave room for expansion up the hill in back of tbe reservation. 

The station was completed early in 1921. It was built over the water to provide 
more land space for the proposed D.c.o. 1s quarters, two duplex CPO quarters, and the 
single men's barracks. These were comple ted late in '21 or early in 122. 
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L t. Porter: "The circuit with Guam was terminated on 13 December 1941. Navy 
radiomen of the Philippines, their 'dots and dashes dripping with contempt for the 
Japanese' beamed Wahiawa, on 6 May 1942, to advise that they were 'going off the air 
now. CUL CM.' Within a few hours the antenna of the 50 kw transmitter, used by Wahiawa 
on the circuit to Corregidor, was 'swung south-westward to Australia for the ne\rl war 
phase'" 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

Radio stations of the district were vulnerable to attacks by lam, air and sea. 
Lualualei was only 4000 yards from the shore line and its power was rece ived over 
exposed lines from the Hawaiian Electric Com�ey twentytwo miles away. Steps were taken 
to increase auxilia� and emergency power, to develop an efficient system of passive 
defense, to disperse transmitters ar.ld to construct bombproof shelters for equipment 
and men. Three bombproof shelters for radio statima were erected subsequent to 19.41, 
but expansion programs af'ter 19.41 seldom provided for the construction of permanent 
buildings even on projects long planned on a t:e rma.nent basis. There was a gradual 
increase of auxiliary po wer units procured through loans from the Arm::f and through 
deliveries from the Bureau of Ships. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

Lt. Porter: 11Wailupe, too, was located on the seacoast and had neither splinter­
proof nor bombproof buildings. So, on the morning of 10 December 1941, the District 
Communication Officer decided to have all radio equipment at Wailupe moved to Wahiawa. 
The new site was an excellent receiving area arid the best protected radio station of 
the entire district. Men worked night and day to transfer operations to Wahiawa. The 
move became a veritable scramble causing facilities to be installed more or less at 
random. Relocation was completed on 17 December without the slightest interruption of 
communications. Equipment for receiving pu-poses, for control keying, and for the 
coding board, was located in Operations Building No. 2, a lOa% bombproof building. A 
Boehme point to point circuit was established with Washington immediately and, though 
it was one of the longest circuits of this type on record, it gave excellent service. 
Equipment was ot:erated at speeds of 200 to 300 words per minute to clear traffic. 
According to prearranged plans, the distress frequency was assigned to the Coast Guard 
station at Diamom Head (NMO). Diamon:l Head thus became the first Coast Guard station 
in the Pacific to relieve a Navy station of guarding the distress frequency." 

Wahiawa ceased to assist directly with trans-oceanic nights of Navy aircra.t't ani 
this service was ren:lered by naval air stations. 

In some areas of the Pacific the Fleet broadcast faded and ve� low frequency was 
difficult for ships and shore stations to copy. To correct this situation, begimti.ng 
1 Februa� 1942, all traffic on the Primary Fleet Broadcast was transmitted simultaneous­
ly on high frequencies, as well as on very low frequency. The paralleling resulted in 
better coverage throughout the Pacific. The improvement was made possible by delivery 
and installation of equipment ordered maey months before a state of hostilities existed. 
Increased facilities also provided a first-class link between Wailupe ani Alaska, the 
Canal Zone and the Navy Department in \iashington. 

In 1942 the district was confronted with the problem of trying to manage combat 
communications for too large an area on one Fleet broadcast. As a conse1quence, the 
San Francisco Fleet Broadcast was initiated ani relieved Wahiawa of the Aleutian area, 
and later serviced all ships between Honolulu and the mainland. A point to point 
circuit with Kodiak {Nlm) was also assigned to the Naval Badio Station at San Francisco. 
Wahiawa was then able to concentrate on providing efficient communications for the 
defense of the Southern ani Central Pacific ocean areas. 
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